ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COW TTEE
January 31, 2013
3:05 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Pete Higgins, Chair
Representative Wes Keller, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Benj am n Nageak
Representative Lance Pruitt
Representative Lora Reinbold
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Geran Tarr

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR
HOUSE BI LL NO 53
“An Act establishing a consultation requirenent with respect to
the prescription of opiates under certain circunstances.”
- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 53

SHORT TITLE: CONSULTATI ON FOR OPI ATE PRESCRI PTI ON
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) KELLER

01/ 16/ 13 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/11/13
01/ 16/ 13 (H) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 16/ 13 (H) HSS, L&C

01/31/13 (H) HSS AT 3:00 PM CAP| TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

JI M POUND, Staff

Representative Ws Kel | er

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented HB 53 on behalf of the bill
sponsor, Representative Keller.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -1- January 31, 2013



PATRI CI A SENNER, Interim D rector of Professional Practice
Al aska Nurses Associ ation

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during discussion of HB 53.

LEON CHANDLER, MD
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during discussion of HB 53.

EM LY NENON, Al aska Governnent Rel ations Director

Ameri can Cancer Society Cancer Action Network

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during discussion of HB 53.

JUDI TH DEARBORN, Presi dent

Al aska Associ ation of Nurse Anesthetists

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during discussion of HB 53.

ANNA NELSON, Executive Director

Interior AIDS Association (IAA)

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during discussion of HB 53.

LARRY STI NSQON, M D.

Advanced Pain Centers of Al aska

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during discussion of HB 53.

JAY CALDWELL, Medical Director

Narcotic Drug Treatnent Center

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during discussion of HB 53.

BOB TWLLMAN, Director of Policy and Advocacy

Ameri can Acadeny of Pain Managenent

Sonora, California

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of proposed HB 53.

RON GREENE, Cinical Director

Narcotic Drug Treatnent Center

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during discussion of HB 53.

BARRY CHRI STENSEN

Al aska Pharnmaci st Associ ati on
Anchor age, Al aska

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 2- January 31, 2013



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during discussion of HB 53.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:05: 54 PM

CHAIR PETE HIGA NS called the House Health and Social Services
St andi ng Committee nmeet i ng to or der at 3: 05 p. m
Representatives Higgins, Reinbold, Pruitt, Nageak, Keller, Tarr,
and Seaton were present at the call to order.

HB 53- CONSULTATI ON FOR OPlI ATE PRESCRI PTI ON

3:06:49 PM

CHAIR H GA@ NS announced that the only order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 53, "An Act establishing a consultation
requirenent with respect to the prescription of opiates under
certain circunstances."

3:07:14 PM
REPRESENTATI VE PRU TT noved to adopt committee substitute (CS)

for HB 53, |abeled 28-LS0177\C, Martin, 1/30/13, as the working
docunent. There being no objection, it was so ordered.

3:07:37 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER, as the sponsor of proposed HB 53,
expl ai ned that the proposed bill was about prescription of pain
medi cati ons. He opined that nmany people had used some of the

opi ates, including Darvon and OxyContin. He clarified that the
proposed CS, Version C, was an inportant work in progress, and
he asked that the Departnent of Health and Social Services not
yet take a position on the proposed bill, but instead offer
i nsi ghts and suggesti ons.

3:09: 15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER explained that testinony to the Al aska
Health Care Conmmi ssion, on which he served, described "the very
negative effects on people who take too nuch of this category of
drugs.” He reported that data suggested that sone patients who
had received "too big a dose of these pain nmeds for six nonths
have like a 1 or 2 percent chance of ever going back to work.
It just rearranges their whole lives.”" He expressed his desire

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 3- January 31, 2013



to ensure that innocent people were not hurt with an inadvertent
over dose. He reported that opiates were addictive, naturally-
occurring al kaloids found in the opium poppy. He decl ared that
ever increasing dosage was a warning signal. He expl ai ned that
the proposed bill wused 120 ng of norphine equivalent as a
baseline |evel of concern, as any anount above this would
require consultations for prescription.

3:12: 06 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the proposed bill included pain
nmedi cations other than opiates, and he questioned whether
OxyContin was included in the definition of opiates.

3:12: 40 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER replied that the proposed bill included a
spectrum of drugs, which included OxyContin and Darvon. He
reiterated that an opiate was an alkaloid found in the opium
poppy, and he opined that there were also synthetic versions of
t he al kal oi d.

3:13:17 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PRU TT directed attention to the handout titl ed,
"What are Opiates?" [Included in nmenbers' packets]

3:13:38 PM

JIM POUND, Staff, Representative Ws Keller, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, shared that the original proposed bill had been 4
pages, but, as it had generated a |lot of interest, the proposed
CS was now expanded to 15 pages. He said that testinony and

| anguage from many nenbers of the nedical profession, primarily
the Al aska Board of Nursing, the Al aska State Medical Board, the
State of Alaska Board of Dental Exam ners, and the Al aska Board
of Pharmacy, had been |unped together. He declared that it was
difficult to track individuals when prescriptions were obtained
from many doctors. He reported that the Alaska Prescription
Drug Monitoring Program had been created in 2008, and was
adm nistered in the Departnent of Conmerce, Community & Econonic

Devel opnent . He described that this database I|isted the
patients and the "doctors who are licensed to issue opiate-type
pai nkillers." He declared the intent of the proposed bill was

for the database to be checked before a prescription was filled,
as these drugs were "just as addictive in the long run as their
on-the-street brothers, heroin and opium"™ He reported that

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -4- January 31, 2013



this problem was growing in Al aska and across the rest of the
U. S He said that these prescriptions were initially taken for
pai n managenent, but that the dosages were being increased. He
poi nted out that the definition in Version C, 120 ng of norphine
equi val ent, woul d be the standard.

3:17:21 PM

MR. POUND shared that WVersion C also included |anguage for
mai nt enance net hadone users, those who were addicted to drugs

but were enrolled in a "clean-up process” in clinics. He
acknowl edged that, although these did not fall into the
guidelines of pain nmanagenent, it was necessary to have
communi cati on between the nethadone clinics and the primary care
physi ci ans. He shared that the proposed CS added sone
exenptions to pain nmanagenent prograns, including an "end-of-
life situation.” He pointed out that, with Version C, there was

now a four week w ndow before pain managenent consultation was
required for opiate pain killer prescriptions.

3:19:47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR asked if there would be testinony from the
boards nentioned earlier.

MR. POUND replied that there would not be testinmony from the
boar ds today.

3:20: 30 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON directed attention to Version C, page 3,
line 3, and asked for nore information.

MR. POUND replied that this new | anguage was added to existing
| anguage and woul d ensure that the nedical professionals check
with the Al aska Prescription Drug Mnitoring Program database to
avoid prescription of additional pain medication to individuals
al ready receiving them

3:21:18 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked to identify the four week excl usion.

MR POUND replied that this was included in the general
| anguage.

3:21:47 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 5- January 31, 2013



REPRESENTATI VE KELLER offered his belief that there would be
testi nony about the aforenentioned database from the providers,
as it was a relatively new system in Al aska. He reported that

the database had been paid for wth federal funding. He
explained that Version C listed the database use requirenents
for each nedical provider, which nmade parts of the bill appear

repetitive.
3:23:09 PM

MR. POUND, in response an earlier question regarding the four
week w ndow from Representative Seaton, directed attention to
page 3, line 10 of Version C

3:23:30 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked to clarify that, although the
consultation was after four weeks, failure to conplete a
requi red check of the data base for any |evel of pain nedication
prior to prescription could result in a revocation, suspension
or reprimand for the provider's nedical |icense.

MR. POUND expressed his agreenent.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON opined that this was not a workable
solution, and he offered his belief that funding for the
dat abase would expire in August, 2013. He asked if there was a
fiscal note to expand or extend the database.

3:25:13 PM

MR. POUND expressed his anticipation that there would be a
fiscal note for the continuation of the database.

3:25:37 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER explained that there was a presunption
that the database would continue to function, which was
i ncunbent on funding by Departnment of Comerce, Conmunity &
Econom ¢ Devel opnent.

3:26:13 PM
MR. POUND, in response to a question from Representative Tarr,

said that he would try to get representatives from all the
aforenmenti oned boards to testify.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 6- January 31, 2013



REPRESENTATI VE TARR directed attention to the definition of
opiate in statute, and suggested that this was an opportunity to
align the language in the proposed bill nore specifically wth
the definition.

MR.  POUND read: "opiate nmeans (a) a substance having an
addiction formng and addi ction sustaining capability simlar to
nmor phine or being capable of conversion into a drug having
addi ction form ng or addiction sustaining capability."

3:27:54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR suggested an alignnent of the definitions to
al l eviate any uncertainty in Version C

3:28:11 PM
CHAIR HHGA NS, directing attention to page 3, line 3, noted his

background in the health profession as a dentist, and suggested
that the pharmacists initiate the search on the database.

3:29:26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON nentioned that of the 18 pain nanagenent
specialists in Alaska, only 4 were outside of Anchorage. He
guesti oned whether these specialists would qualify according to
the definition in Version C page 4, |line 23. He noted that
Version C did not ensure that a currently licensed pain
managenent specialist would qualify under the proposed bill as

new regul ati ons woul d be adopted. He expressed his concern that
there would be sufficient certified pain nmanagenment specialists
in Al aska.

3:31:52 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER expressed his belief that there would be
nore qualified specialists than currently, as each of the
medi cal boards would |ist standards for pain nmanagenent
specialists that would include these mninmum qualifications
listed on page 4, |ine 23.

3:32: 57 PM

CHAI R HI GA NS opened public testinony.

3:33:29 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -7- January 31, 2013



The committee took a brief at-ease.

3:34:48 PM

CHAI R HI GA NS brought the commttee back to order
3:35: 05 PM

PATRICIA SENNER, Interim Director of Professional Practice,
Al aska Nurses Association, stated that proposed HB 53 was
fashioned after the far nore extensive regul ati ons devel oped by
five State of Washi ngton boards and conm ssions. She noted that
the referral requirement was only one provision of the pain
managenment regulations that were addressed by that group and
that there were specific guidelines for assessnment of patients
with chronic pain, which included a pain plan. She said that
the State of Washington did not require a referral to the data
base, as it was not yet reliable enough. She suggested that, as
nurse anesthetists were involved in pain managenent in Al aska,
this group should also be included in the proposed bill. She
expressed three concerns with the proposed bill: how can a
required referral be made, as it currently takes nonths for an
appointment with a pain managenent specialist; how could pain
managenent specialists conduct telephone <consultations for
controlled substances wth rural regions; as 11 of the 18
current pain managenent specialists were anesthesiologists,

there would be a need for nurse anesthetists. She expressed
that, as the proposed bill included exenptions for palliative,
hospice care, and end of life care, it also recognize non-
term nal cancer patients, and she asked for cancer patients to
be excl uded. She opined that, as the prescription drug data
base was new, it often lagged real tine in its display of data,
and it could be difficult to access from rural areas. She

offered her belief that the data base was not yet ready to be a
requi renent, and she suggested that the aforenentioned boards
propose some pai n nmanagenent gui delines and regul ati ons.

3:39:45 PM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if doctors in the State of
Washi ngton were no |onger accepting pain managenent patients

because of the conplex regul ations.

M5. SENNER said that she had also heard this, especially for
general practitioners.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 8- January 31, 2013



3:41: 00 PM

LEON CHANDLER, MD, said that the Anerican Association of Pain
Managenent had asked him to testify, although he was not a
menber of the association. He reported that he had started pain
managenent in 1988 in Alaska, and that the conplications were
onerous in the best of circunstances. He offered his help with
the proposed bill, but he expressed his concern for the
uni nt ended consequences throughout Al aska. He acknow edged t hat
at least four pain managenent doctors would not see any patients
who required nedical managenent for pain control. He decl ared
that the problem was wth those individuals who were drug
seeking. He stated that he had worked with the Drug Enforcenent
Agency and he pointed to the difficulty for enforcenent of these

regul ati ons. He directed attention to the three pedestals
required to nmanage these problens: the prescribing physician,
the pharmacy, and the regul atory agency. He noted that there
was no |onger a Drug Enforcenent Agency official in Al aska. He
declared that, although the goals of the proposed bill were
admrable, there was the need for a mnechanism to mneasure the
goals for their inpact on the intent of the bill. He
recomended inserting a sunset clause in the proposed bill, in
case the bill proved to be nore of a hindrance than a help. He

predicted nore difficulties when prinmary care physicians would
no longer wite prescriptions. He affirnmed that a goal of the
nmedi cal conmunity was to care for the public. He offered his
belief that addictive nedications could blend into chem cal
dependency, and not just addictive personalities. He suggested
that the proposed bill be closely scrutinized before it was
passed as it could influence the nmedical care systemin Al aska.

3:46: 07 PM

EMLY NENON, Alaska Governnent Relations D rector, Anmerican
Cancer Society Cancer Action Network, commented that there were
many pieces of this conplex issue which needed to be addressed.
She highlighted that cancer related pain for long term cancer
survivors could be chronic, and it could be necessary for
opiates to maintain a quality of life, even when there was not
active treatment for cancer.

3:47:29 PM
JUDI TH DEARBORN, Presi dent, Al aska Association of Nur se
Anest hetists, offered sone background on certified registered

nurse anesthetists (CRNA), describing themas a "type of advance
practice registered nurse, prepared at the masters or doctoral

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -9- January 31, 2013



| evel with specialized education in anesthesia and pain
managenent . " She reported that, although Alaska statute
recogni zed CRNAs as "nurse anesthetists,” the Al aska Board of
Nur si ng recogni zed this group of 99 currently active nenbers in

Alaska as "certified registered nurse anesthetists.” She
pointed out that, of the nine Al aska boroughs w th anesthesia
services, four had anesthesia only provided by CRNAs. In rural

communities wth CRNAs providing the only available pain
managenent, it would be nmuch nore costly for patients to trave
el sewhere for service from other providers. She directed
attention to the Novenber 1, 2012 directive fromthe Centers for
Medi care and Medicaid Services (CM5) which ruled that, as of
January 1, 2013, chronic pain managenent service provided by
CRNAs would be eligible for reinbursenent for all authorized
Medi care services performed under the specific state law and
scope of practice. She reported that the Medicare program in
Al aska had approved chronic pain managenent services as within
the scope of practice by CRNAs in Al aska. Directing attention
to Version C, page 8, I|ine 16, she requested that "nurse
anest heti st” be replaced by "certified registered nurse
anest hetists.”

3:50: 57 PM

ANNA NELSON, Executive Director, Interior AIDS Association
(I AA), said that her organization supported the efforts to curb
the abuse and over prescription of opiates. She reported that

her program was one of two nethadone prograns in Al aska, and
treated people "with long term chronic addiction to opiates."”
She stated that the requirenment for consultation with primry
care providers in proposed HB 53 did "not acknow edge the
reality of much of the addict population, nost of whom have no
health insurance and hence no primary provider." She remarked
that sone primary care providers had contributed to the initia
addi ction, whether well-neaning or negligent. She suggested
removal of the consultant requirenent fromthe proposed bill, as
its passage would create a nmajor barrier to treatnent for opiate
addi cti on. She offered her belief that it contradicted sone of
the efforts to curb prescription drug abuse. She clarified that
net hadone, when adm nistered in a supervised treatnment program
was tightly regulated and initial treatnent dosages were limted
by federal regulations. As federal regulations required that
the initial dosage be no nore than 30 ng, this would make it
difficult for a primary care physician to establish a base line
dosage. She said that patients were seen by the program al nost
daily, were tested for other drugs, and were required to
participate in counseling and education to help change their

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 10- January 31, 2013



lives. She suggested that the prinmary care providers consult
with the addiction trained nedical professionals, pointing out

that methadone prograns were required by federal law to be
licensed, accredited, and registered. She noted that the
nmet hadone prograns were also closely nonitored by the State of
Al aska's Division of Behavioral Health. She concluded by

stating that the proposed bill did not add accountability and it
interfered with the treatnent for addiction.

3:54: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked for clarification of her reference
to a 30 ng equivalent, and how that related to the proposed
bill.

M5. NELSON, directing attention to Version C, page 14, line 5,
said that the consultation by a health care professional wth
the patient's prinmary care provider was neani ngless, as federa
regul ations had determned the initial dosage to be 30 ngy, which
would then be slowy adjusted by the physician from the
nmet hadone programto neet the needs of the patient.

3:55:39 PM

LARRY STINSON, MD., Advanced Pain Centers of Alaska, offered
his support in principle to proposed HB 53. He suggested that
treatment prograns and cancer prograns be exenpt from these
requi renents. He stated that there was a "true problem
nationwide and in the state with overprescribing and overdose of
narcotics. It's the nunmber one accidental killer of people in
the country, ahead of notor vehicle accidents.” He pointed out
that an equivalent to 120 ng of norphine was a significant
anount of nedication. He reported that, of his several thousand
patients, only a handful received an equivalent anmount of
medi cation, and only for very specific circunstances. He
expressed concern that any physician wuld feel "shackled" by
this legislation, and he questioned their practice. He reported
that certification as a pain specialist required many years of
training and practice. He appl auded the intentions of proposed
HB 53. He referred to an upconming report from the State of
Washi ngton, which stated that 85 percent of the primary care
providers were very satisfied with simlar State of Washington
legislation that limted prescriptions to an equivalent of 120
mg of norphine. He added that the data also reflected a
decrease in suicides, energency room deaths, and donestic
vi ol ence. He observed that sone aspects of the proposed bil

did need nodification. He declared that there was a serious

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -11- January 31, 2013



problem and it was not appropriate to ignore this problem He
offered his belief that proposed HB 53 "goes a |ong way" toward
protecting the public.

3:59:51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked for suggestions to inprove the bil
as it was witten. He directed attention to Version C, page 3,
line 3, and asked if this |anguage shoul d be nodifi ed.

4:00: 59 PM

DR STINSQON, in response to Representative Seaton, opined that
the current |anguage would be cunbersome as witten, and would
be difficult to perform He questioned whether the data base
was currently reliable enough "to nmake it worthwhile.” He
offered his belief that, for patients exceeding the 120 ng
equi val ent threshold, it would be appropriate to check the data
base nonthly. He said that the daily use of 180 ng equival ent
increased the risk for death, so it would be beneficial to check
for any other prescriptions.

4:02:32 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD asked that Dr. Stinson submt witten
t esti nony.

4:03:42 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR, referring to testinony that prescription
overdose was the nunber one killer, asked if this was the result
of an individual receiving prescriptions from several providers,
or overusing a single prescription.

4:04:22 PM

DR. STINSON replied that patients often beconme so tolerant of
medi cation that the dosage was continually increased to gain the
benefits. He reported that there was not the sanme tol erance for
the side effects to opioids, which could include respiratory
depr essi on.

4:05: 47 PM
REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD asked to clarify that there would be

wi t hdrawal treatnment available should the proposed bill limt
prescriptions to 120 ng equi val ents of nor phi ne.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -12- January 31, 2013



DR. STINSON said that he would often taper nedication for
patients. He noted that the University of Wshington had an
access tel ephone line with pain experts to give guidance for the
tapering of pain medication reginens. He expressed his support
for the nethadone clinics.

4:07:12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked what the optinmum prescription dosage
was to require a check of the database.

DR. STINSON replied that, based on the State of Washington
epidem ologic data, it would be appropriate for prescriptions of
120 ng equival ents of norphine to be checked nonthly on the data
base as this was the point "where bad things started happening
in increasing frequency." He declared that acute pain and
chronic pain were "two different things." He expl ai ned that
pain nedication following major surgery could be waived, but
t hat ongoi ng use of opioid nmedications should be nonitored.

4:10: 20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NAGEAK relayed his own experiences with pain and
how he managed it. He extolled the need to keep noving. He
acknowl edged the "high" feeling from nedication, and the desire
to maintain this feeling.

4:12:49 PM

JAY CALDWELL, Medical Director, Narcotic Drug Treatnent Center,
agreed with Ms. Nelson that the general idea of the proposed
bill was "headed in the right direction.” He opined that there
had been a m scalculation in proposed Section 47.37.175 on page
14, line 5 of Version C He stated that there were only two
health care professional categories for treatnent. One category
was certified for office based opiate treatnment for opiate
dependent clients, and the other category was at the federally

mandated and operated nethadone clinics. He stated that no
ot her physicians in Alaska were authorized to treat drug abuse
by patients. He stated that pain managenent physicians and
famly practice physicians do not treat drug dependence or
abuse. He noted that this proposed section only applied to
about 30 physicians, in addition to the 2 physicians at the
met hadone clinics. He pointed out that the patients at the
nmet hadone clinic "are an entirely different breed of patients
than in any kind of famly or private practice." He said that

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 13- January 31, 2013



many of the patients had becone opiate dependent as a result of
pai n. He explained that the difference between dependence and
addiction was a behavioral statenent. | ndi vi duals who were
addicted attenpted to nmaintain opiate |evels through anti-soci al
met hods, whereas dependence was a chemcal statenent, not
everyone who was dependent was an addict, and not all addicts
were necessarily dependent. He said that nany of the addicts at
t he nmethadone treatnent centers had been rejected, or felt they
had been rejected, by their physicians. He suggested an
elimnation of the aforenmentioned proposed section. He
acknow edged that opiates were diverted in both private
practice, and in pain nedicine clinics whereas, nethadone
clinics only distributed nmethadone in a liquid, which was "very,
very, very carefully nonitored." He reported that the clients
received nmethadone daily for the first three nonths. He
expl ained that the subsequent weekly dosage, which could be
taken from the clinic, was only allowable after extensive
soci al, psychol ogi cal, and nursing eval uations. He pointed out
that regular, wunannounced wurine testing revealed any other
medi cati ons. He enphasized that the regulations for discussion
between the nethadone clinic physicians and the primary care
physi ci ans was "not even close to being appropriate and |I'm sure
you will correct that." He expressed support for the remai nder
of the proposed bill.

4:20:59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked to clarify that the two nethadone
clinics should be exenpt. He also asked if the methadone clinic
contacted a patient's primary care doctor.

DR. CALDVELL replied that the vast majority of the clients did
not have a primary care physician. He reported that the clinic
woul d coordinate an appointnment wth a physician, or the
Anchor age Nei ghborhood Health Center, for any detection of other

medi cal probl ens. He noted that the clinic insisted that any
pregnant wormen speak with an obstetrician or health care
provi der. He offered his belief that the nethadone clinics had

greater regulation, testing, and control than any others.
4:23. 45 PM

BOB TWLLMAN, Director of Policy and Advocacy, American Acadeny
of Pain Mnagenent, stated that the Anmerican Acadeny of Pain
Managenent was opposed to proposed HB 53, although it was
synpathetic to the intent to provide "good care for people who
are on high dose, long term opioid therapy."” He expressed

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -14- January 31, 2013



concern that this method of intervention would not be workable,
woul d have uni ntended negative consequences, and, based on the
Acadeny's experiences with simlar legislation in the State of
Washi ngt on, woul d not achieve the goal. He stated that nunerous
reports suggested that primary care providers would no | onger
provi de pain nedication. He offered his belief that this was
due to fear by primary care providers for lack of clarity for
the rules. He suggested studying the long termresults in the
State of Washington prior to passing |egislation. He pointed
out that there were "access problens for people with pain in
Washi ngton. " He briefed that pain specialists had expressed
concern that their appointnments were filled with consultations,
with the referring primary care physicians assunming that the
pain specialist would take care of the patient. The pain
specialists declared that the primary care doctors would not
take the patients back. He suggested sone other interventions,
including full funding of the prescription nonitoring program a
requi renent that all dispensers of pain nedication register to
access data from the program and to allow delegates of the
di spensers to obtain the reports fromthe program He suggested
that the nonitoring program send wunsolicited reports to
prescribers if any suspicious behavior was detected, and he
endorsed continuing education progranms for prescribers about
pai n managenent and substance abuse screening, diagnosis, and
treat ment. He observed that a conmssion, task force, or
interim study comrmittee would be a better alternative to
i mredi at e | egi sl ati on.

4:27:36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD asked that the proposed solutions be
submitted in witing.

4:27:59 PM

RON GREENE, Cinical Director, Narcotic Drug Treatnent Center,
shared that there had been not been an overdose in this
nmet hadone  program which he attributed to the regular,
unschedul ed urine tests. He declared that the mjority of
peopl e take prescriptions as prescribed; however, there was a
portion of the population that had problens with addiction to
medi cati on.

4:28:59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked about the |argest nethadone dosage
prescribed in the program

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -15- January 31, 2013



MR. GREENE replied that the initial dosage was 30 ng, but this
dosage could be increased after consultation if there were stil
signs of w thdrawal. He declared that there was not a limt to
t he anount of nethadone. In response to Representative Keller
he pointed out that there was always a risk for death wth
prescription nedication, but since inception of the program in
1974, he had not heard of any overdose deaths in the program
He declared that about 10 percent of the nethadone deaths
occurred after the initial dose, hence the federal regulations
[imting this to 30 ng.

4:31:30 PM

BARRY CHRI STENSEN, Al aska Pharnmacist Association, said that
pharmaci sts filled narcotic prescriptions daily, and as these
reports were then submtted each nonth to a central data base
the posted data would be at least a nonth old. He expressed
concern that proposed HB 53 would require pharmacists to check
the data base for every opioid prescription, which included

cough syrup and pain pills. He questioned the procedure should
the website not be operating or the pharmacy not have internet
access. He asked about continued funding for the data base

program He asked that the Al aska Board of Pharmacy be invol ved
with the witing of the regul ati ons regardi ng pharnaci sts.

4:33:54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD asked if the governor had budgeted any
funding for this program

MR. CHRI STENSEN replied that he did not know.
4:34:13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, referring to Version C, page 13, line 25,
asked if his association had any conment for making this a
mandatory programand its effect.

MR. CHRISTENSEN replied that, as Version C had just been
rel eased, there had not been any discussion. He said that
al though he used the data base whenever he had a concern, the
association was also concerned with a requirenment to check on
every opiate prescription.

4:35:59 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 16- January 31, 2013



CHAIR HHGE NS | eft public testinony open

4:36: 23 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked that the sponsor review page 13,
line 28, "or providing nedical care to a person,"” for any
uni nt ended consequences.

4:37:29 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER, in response to Representative Tarr, said
that, as the sponsor for proposed HB 53, he would accunul ate all
t he suggestions in a proposed blank comm ttee substitute.

4:38:15 PM

CHAI R HI GA NS expressed his agreenent.

[ HB 53 was hel d over. ]

4:38:51 PM

ADJ QURNVENT

There being no further business before the conmttee, the House

Health and Social Services Standing Conmittee neeting was
adj ourned at 4:38 p. m

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -17- January 31, 2013



